
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

27 October 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 4th November, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
in the Guildhall, South Street, Boston PE21 6HT 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Anton Dani 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, 

Viven Edge, Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

B   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

C   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday, 1st November 2021. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   JOINT BBC-ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE (Pages 1 - 22) 
 

 (A report presented by Councillor Judith Skinner, Chairman of the Joint Scrutiny 
Panel) 
 

2   LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23 (Pages 23 - 30) 
 

 (A report by Sharon Hammond, Head of Revenues and Benefits) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jonathan Noble 

 

3   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) PEER REVIEW - PROGRESS 
UPDATE (Pages 31 - 38) 
 

 (A report by James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 
Services) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner 

 

4   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY (Pages 39 - 44) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Insights & Transformation Manager) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Nigel Welton  

 

5   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 45 - 54) 
 

 (For Members to discuss and add to the Committee’s current work programme, 
taking into account the attached performance information and draft Forward Plan) 
 

Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 4TH NOVEMBER 2021 

SUBJECT: SCRUTINY PANEL TOPIC – JOINT BBC/ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 

KEY DECISION:  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

NO 

THIS IS A REPORT OF THE JOINT SCRUTINY & POLICY PANEL 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

THE SCRUTINY PANEL REPORT HAS BEEN PREPARED BY A SCRUTINY 

& POLICY PANEL AS SET OUT IN THE ATTACHMENT 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees of Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District 

Council have commissioned a joint scrutiny panel to undertake a review of the strategic alliance 

and merged workforce, concentrating on four key lines of enquiry. 

Note:  All content is contained in the attached member report and not summarised in this 

covering report. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 To note the attached report; 

 To recommend the report for consideration at the next full Council meeting. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To note recommendations put forward by Scrutiny & Policy Panel as part of a scrutiny process. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



REPORT 

This report brings forward a joint scrutiny report, found at Appendix A. 
 
The scope of this work was set out by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees at ELDC and BBC and 
is attached at Appendix B. 
 
All content is contained in the attached member report and not summarised in this covering report. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

 

CONSULTATION 

The report has been prepared by the Chair and Vice Chair of the joint scrutiny panel and agreed by 

panel members. 

  

Page 2



 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

Appendix A Scrutiny Report - Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic 

Alliance 

Appendix B Scoping Document 

Appendix C Questions for Witnesses 

Appendix D Councillor Questionnaire Results 

Appendix E Meeting Notes 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: The Scrutiny Panel report has been prepared by a 

Scrutiny & Policy Panel as set out in the 

attachment. 

Signed off by: Rebecca James, Scrutiny Officer 

Approved for publication: James Gilbert, Assistant Director, Corporate  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

1 
 

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 
 

Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 
 

Councillors ELDC: F. Martin, E. Mossop (Vice Chair), H. Matthews, S. Devereux, D. 
Mangion, C, Newman, D. Edginton. 
 
Councillors BBC: S. Woodliffe, J. Welbourn, J. Skinner (Chair), A. Dani, K. Chalmers, P. 
Goodale, D. Brown. 
 
Officers: James Gilbert (Assistant Director, Corporate) Rebecca James (Scrutiny 
Officer)  
 
Witnesses: Councillor Craig Leyland (Leader, ELDC), Councillor Paul Skinner (Leader, 
BBC), Councillor Jonathan Noble (Finance Portfolio Holder, BBC) Rob Barlow (Joint 
Chief Executive), Christine Marshall (Deputy Chief Executive / S151 Officer), Adrian 
Sibley, (Deputy Chief Executive, Programme Delivery) 
 
Introduction 
 
In July 2020, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District formed a strategic 
alliance. The Councils retained their independence and have been working towards a 
single officer team to deliver their respective priorities. The alliance was projected to 
deliver £15.4m in savings over ten years; whilst providing both Councils with greater 
capacity to deliver their priorities. 
 
This joint scrutiny panel was asked to undertake a review of the alliance and merged 
workforce, focusing on 4 key areas: 
 

1. To understand the progress that has been made so far in bringing together 
functions and teams across the alliance; 

2. To assess whether joint working on the planning and delivery of services has 
mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and whether projected savings 
(money and capacity) are being achieved; 

3. To understand the opportunities that have been secured by the Councils’ 
working collaboratively together; 

4. To understand how it has been possible to merge cultures, the difficulties that 
have arisen from this and how this can be managed.  

 
The panel met 3 times, interviewed 6 witnesses (Questions found at Appendix C), and 
conducted a survey among BBC and ELDC Councillors to canvass their views. The 
results of the survey are attached at Appendix D. 
 
 
 

Page 5



Appendix A 

2 
 

Panel Discussion / Analysis 
 
Managing a scrutiny across our two Councils is no easy task as alignment of 
Councillors’ diaries to attend these joint meetings becomes more difficult. This is  
illustrated by the fact that the report is led by two Councillors, Judith Skinner, the 
elected Chairman and Edward Mossop, the Vice-Chairman who chaired the final 
meeting. Going forward, these difficulties could be exacerbated by the entry of South 
Holland into the alliance and so we note that early fixing of dates for future joint 
scrutiny would be welcomed. 
 
That said, the panel could not have managed this process without the guidance and 
expertise from Rebecca James and James Gilbert who were supportive throughout the 
meetings and we are grateful to them and also to the witnesses who were interviewed 
for willingly giving up their evening to talk to us. The remote meetings were conducted 
in a relaxed, yet challenging manner and all Councillors present contributed to the 
debate.  Thank you! 
 
The interviews were conducted over two meetings with senior Councillors and 
members of the Officer leadership team including the Chief Executive. Members 
adhered to the 4 key areas of enquiry as outlined above and used evidence from the 
Councillor questionnaire and information from the staff satisfaction survey to further 
challenge the witnesses. The interviewees gave a wholly positive picture of the 
progress of the alliance illustrated by examples of how teams across two Councils have 
come together. We sought assurance that the projected savings as outlined in the 
original agreement were being achieved (they are). We asked for examples of how 
collaborative working has furthered opportunities for both Councils (e.g., towns fund 
bids) and further suggested ways in which the alliance could effectively use combined 
power to achieve successful outputs (e.g., lobby on behalf of the IDBs). We asked 
about how the merging cultures of two and now, three Councils can be successfully 
managed and, in our recommendations, have highlighted suggested ways of doing this 
to create a common identity for this large area of Lincolnshire. The notes from our 
meetings are attached at Appendix E. 
   
In addition to the witnesses who were interviewed the panel agreed to send out a 
short questionnaire to all Councillors to gauge their views on how they felt the alliance 
was progressing. We received fifteen responses, the full results are attached at 
Appendix D. There were several common themes that emerged from the responses 
which have formed the basis of some of our recommendations. These include clear 
lines of communications, cementing relationships, alignment of policies and joint 
meetings. Not all Councillors are positive about the alliance and it is also noted that a 
large majority did not respond to the questionnaire. Thank you to those that did 
respond and for the useful pointers that guided us. 
 
Our final hour of discussion led to the refining of our recommendations which were 
circulated the day after our meeting and agreed by email. An additional 
recommendation relating to the continuing joint scrutiny monitoring of the now, 

Page 6



Appendix A 

3 
 

three-way alliance was included to ensure this important joint work of non-executive 
Councillors continues going forward. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That staff ‘snapshot’ surveys are reported to Overview / Scrutiny on a 6-
monthly basis along with staff turnover figures, in order to monitor any 
significant changes; 

 
2. Review the ICT roadmap priorities and ensure that shared email addresses for 

officers is given the highest priority; 
 

3. To develop a shared strategy to ensure that staff are valued and given 
opportunities to progress, with a view to enhancing recruitment and retention; 

 
4. To better communicate to staff, councillors, and residents any relevant 

updates or priorities, and to celebrate the successes across the alliance; 
 

5. To provide opportunities for more collaborative working for all councillors, 
such as scrutiny panels, project groups, and other shared opportunities across 
the alliance / partnership, especially where there is commonality, e.g., 
licensing and planning policy; 

 
6. To provide an opportunity for councillors to visit partner districts to meet other 

councillors and gain an awareness of the ‘place’ of other districts; 
 

7. Move to an alignment of policies, e.g., procurement, climate change, and 
recycling; 

 
8. To encourage the development of a strong sense of identity within the 3 areas 

of the alliance and the opportunities that they offer. This will help develop a 
sustainable, resilient, and vibrant economy and population; 

 
9. To prepare a strategy so the partnership is fully prepared for the possibility of 

devolution. 
 

10.  That the alliance should work together to lobby the government to ensure the 
financial sustainability of the IDBs on which the residents and the land of the 
3 councils heavily rely; 

 
11. To convene a shared scrutiny panel of the 3 Councils in the new Partnership at 

the end of the first and second year, in order to undertake a review of the 
Partnership and merged workforce. 

 
 
Report authors: Councillor Judith Skinner and Councillor Edward Mossop 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

 

SCRUTINY & POLICY PANEL 
 

Project Scoping Template 
 

Topic: Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 

 
 
 
 

Objectives and Key Issues: 

 

Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District have formed a strategic alliance. The 
Councils retain their independence and are working towards a single officer team to deliver 
their respective priorities.  The alliance will deliver £15.4m in savings over the next ten 
years; whilst providing both Councils with greater capacity to deliver their priorities. 

The objective of the panel is to undertake a review of the alliance and merged workforce. 

 

 

Lines of Enquiry: 
 

- To understand the progress that has been made so far in bringing together functions 
and teams across the alliance; 

- To assess whether joint working on the planning and delivery of services has 
mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and whether projected savings (money 
and capacity) are being achieved; 

- To understand the opportunities that have been secured by the Councils’ working 
collaboratively together; 

- To understand how it has been possible to merge cultures, the difficulties that have 
arisen from this and how this can be managed.  

 
 
 

 

 
Standard Areas to Consider: Equalities / Relationship with Corporate Strategy / Financial 
Implication 
 
 
 
 

Witnesses 

Internal:  

ELDC /BBC Leader 

ELDC / BBC Chief Executive 

ELDC / BBC Members 

Relevant officers 

Page 9



Appendix B 
 

 

External:  

PSPS 
 

Resources: Rebecca James, Scrutiny Officer 

Liaison Officer: James Gilbert, Interim Deputy Chief Executive 

Required officer expertise: To be decided as the scrutiny review progresses 

 

 

Timescale 

Start date: late July UPDATE early September 

End date: late August UPDATE early October 

Target Overview / Scrutiny meeting: September (7th & 16th) UPDATE November (4th BBC, 30th 

ELDC) 

Target Council meeting: September 27th / October 13th UPDATE November 22nd (BBC) 
December 15th (ELDC) 
 

 

Page 10



Appendix C 

 

Questions for witnesses 

 

Are you happy with the progress that has been made so far in bringing together functions and 
teams across the alliance? (For Rob, Leaders) 

Do you feel the Alliance has mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and are you 
confident that projected savings (money and capacity) are being achieved? (For S151 & PFH) 

What opportunities have been secured by the Councils’ working collaboratively together? 
(For Rob, Leaders, S151, PFH) 

Do you feel it has been possible to merge cultures? Have any difficulties arisen and how can 
this be managed? (For Rob, Leaders) 
  
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



ID Start time Completion time Email Name

In your view, what have been the positives of 

the Strategic Alliance between BBC and ELDC? 

Do you have any examples of positive impact 

you would like to share?

In your view, what would you improve 

about the Strategic Alliance between BBC 

and ELDC? Do you have any suggestions 

you would like to share?

What do you think we can learn 

from the BBC and ELDC Strategic 

Alliance to take forward as the 

South & East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership progresses?

1 9/27/21 14:36:24 9/27/21 14:40:37 anonymous

Greater  team working , increased energy and 

expertise.

A way forward that combines strategy 

while maintaining the flavour of each 

council

Joint training sessions etc.

One Team. Empowering, supporting 

projects members and staff to play 

their part.

2 9/27/21 14:42:43 9/27/21 14:49:06 anonymous

Sharing officers across the alliance partners 

means we can look at best practices and learn 

from each other

Similar areas of responsibility between 

portfolios and structures to allow 

management teams to work closer across 

the alliance

Taking on a third partner and 

learning from each other on a wider 

basis to increase productivity and 

achieve greater cost efficiencies

3 9/27/21 14:50:51 9/27/21 14:57:00 anonymous

That East Lindsey staff will get a pay rise to 

bring them into line with their colleagues they 

are expected to work with - and manage.

Communications. No one has any idea of 

who does what any more. Its an absolute 

disaster so far - and having two different 

constitutions ensures that no-one answers 

emails in a timely manner. We cant keep 

blaming Covid. The staff are far too 

stretched so having adequate staffing 

would be an improvement. In fact anything 

would….

Communications, communications, 

communications. Officers far too 

remote from the public they serve. 

Computer stuff does not harmonise. 

Salaries vary inconsistently. Walk 

before you run - the detail is 

important despite what some 

councillors spout. It doesn’t work 

having different constitutions. How 

much more do you need…we 

councillors could write a book. The 

whole place feels like it is falling to 

pieces.

Appendix D

P
age 13



4 9/27/21 14:49:24 9/27/21 15:11:57 anonymous

One of the big advantages of the Strategic 

Alliance is the ability to share officers, clearly 

both councils have experts in certain areas of 

council work, an officer having a speciality could 

be gainfully employed full time by the alliance 

but one council on its own would not find 

enough work to employ an officers full time and 

example where we have shared officers before 

is the monitoring officer.

 

Where portfolios over lap then both council 

portfolio meetings are now merged where 

possible this saves officer time and also 

provides opportunities to see what another 

council is doing to tackle problems and can they 

be sorted out more efficient and effectively 

I would like to see more joint meetings at 

member level.  Where services we are 

delivered jointly then the possibility of 

joint scrutiny could be considered, another 

one that would make sense is a joint 

planning policy committee and economic 

development

Seeing the larger perspective for a 

triple alliance in as much that the 

alliance will cover about 40% of 

Lincolnshire so we will have an even 

stronger voice on issues that affect 

us all such as major infrastructure 

particularly the road network, Sea 

defences with a view to long term 

problem solving not just short term 

fixes,

Working collaboratively to bring new 

industry and quality jobs to the area, 

development of the tourist economy 

to include more that just a fish and 

chips seaside offer, there is a wealth 

of history and culture to be 

discovered in the three areas which 

each of them have and can be 

developed to improve and make the 

offer more diverse

5 9/27/21 14:48:25 9/27/21 15:20:12 anonymous

I think some of the positives have been less 

visible, such as improvements in the staffing of 

smaller departments. We would really notice 

that if there were issues, but it tends to pass 

with less notice when things are going 

smoothly. Aligning IT systems may turn out to 

be a big improvement in the end. It has been 

useful to have closer ties with colleagues in 

Boston and to learn from them. 

I don’t know what everyone does as well 

as previously. So keeping an organisational 

chart regularly updated and sent out is 

useful. The staff numbers we’ve lost 

weren’t people doing nothing, or 

necessarily doing jobs that didn’t need to 

be done. So there is a loss of capacity that 

needs to be monitored closely. 

We will need clear lines of 

communication about who does 

what as the organisation changes 

quickly. We need to make sure 

employees stay on within the 

organisation and aren’t put off by the 

instability brought about by a lot of 

change, so we have to make sure 

employees feel valued, and are 

valued, by the Alliance.

P
age 14



6 9/27/21 16:00:15 9/27/21 16:17:49 anonymous

So far, so good!

Its giving us access to a wider pool of 

experience and knowledge and collectively 

having the potential to improve the services 

that we offer.

On occasions it would help if the person on 

the end of the phone understood the 

situation here, in Boston. This may well be 

reciprocated with ELDC members and 

Boston based staff.

To that end I think it might help if we could 

meet some of these "names" who 

probably work behind the scenes rather 

than the ones who attend out meetings. 

The two districts are quite different, even 

when there are apparently the same issues 

but of course the geography and 

demographics are different.

For many of us the area of South 

Holland has more in common with us 

in Boston however its people are 

different again. Once again I'm going 

into this very positively as I see this 

as a necessity with the situation in 

Local Gov funding. I think that if 

Unitary is suddenly thrust upon us, 

we can be better prepared than had 

we tried to carry on in our own little 

canoe, paddling away on our own.

7 9/27/21 16:54:19 9/27/21 16:56:02 anonymous none that I can think of I.T that works return to offices of all staff

8 9/27/21 18:28:29 9/27/21 18:32:06 anonymous

THAT THERE HAVE BEEN NO REDUNDANCY 

ONLY PEOPLE MOVED SIDEWAYS AND 

RETAINING THEIR ORIGINAL TERMS

A MANAGEMENT BOARD THAT KNOWS 

WHAT NEEDS DOING AND COMES UP 

WITH THE GOODS. WALK BEFORE YOU CAN RUN

9 9/28/21 10:10:37 9/28/21 10:17:42 anonymous

To carry the non decision making councillors 

along it was vital that progress was regularly 

reported. The regular mini newsletters from CX 

have been very useful in doing this.

All of this happened with the backdrop of 

the pandemic and getting together has not 

been the simple job it used to be. I’m 

reasonably certain that an induction style 

event where councillors and officers could 

get acquainted could have been useful in 

cementing relationships. See above.

10 9/28/21 15:07:06 9/28/21 15:08:59 anonymous I don’t know any

There is a cross over between the different 

social media of the councils, it is absolutely 

imperative that these are kept separate To put people before money!

11 9/28/21 11:52:49 9/28/21 16:04:40 anonymous

I don't know of any 

I have no examples of any positive impact the 

alliance has had 

Hard to say as we have not been working 

normally because of C19

Avoid remoteness between officers 

and members 

P
age 15



12 9/29/21 7:56:41 9/29/21 8:14:45 anonymous Savings 

Single policy for waste collection i.e. glass 

at Boston not East Lindsey I am also 

concerned with the management structure 

Too many layers of management I do not 

know why we have all these deputies 

Managers should make decisions and refer 

to chief executive I think it is a bit of a 

gravy train and inefficient Too early to say

13 9/29/21 9:06:31 9/29/21 9:11:33 anonymous

Sharing knowledge and certain practices that 

the other council may not have 

done/considered previously.  Obviously saving 

money with a shared management team. 

It is hard because we set it up during covid 

and as we are not back to normal as yet we 

have not seen a normal working 

environment.    Contact details being more 

streamlined - not knowing if the staff 

member has an ELDC or BBC email address 

when you wish to make contact is rather 

frustrating. 

As previously stated, due to being set 

up in a pandemic of which we are not 

out of it is hard to say.  However, 

keeping all within each council 

informed of the correct contacts for 

departments and hopefully 

streamlining the email addresses to 

make it easier for all.

14 10/1/21 11:33:17 10/1/21 11:46:26 anonymous

None that are visible to me. Didn’t know who 

did what before the merger and now even 

further in the dark.

An exhaustive internal telephone directory 

with full contact details and job 

responsibilities. Job responsibilities to be in 

plain English not ‘Council speak’. All 

acronyms to be fully explained. Less use of 

highfalutin titles which baffle rather than 

inform.

Not sure if ‘working from home’ isn’t, 

in some cases, an oxymoron. Three 

districts maybe just means more 

‘smoke and mirrors’.

15 10/4/21 9:54:22 10/4/21 9:58:58 anonymous

Not seen any positives but I have seen and felt 

the result of negatives...........Boston IT staff 

leaving..

Sorry but it now feels too big. I only agreed 

to the Alliance for cost saving. Nothing

P
age 16



Appendix E 

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING NOTES 
 
Name of Panel: Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 

 
Date and Time: 23rd September 2021, 6pm 

 
1.  Election of Chair (BBC) / Vice-Chair (ELDC) 

 

Councillor Judith Skinner was elected Chair and Councillor Edward Mossop was 
elected Vice-Chair. 

 
2.  Panel Discussion of Scope / Lines of Enquiry 

 
Councillor Fiona Martin suggested that a short questionnaire be sent to all ELDC 
and BBC councillors asking for their opinions on the issues raised in the lines of 

enquiry. It was agreed that the questions should be open-ended and look for 
positives and suggestions for improvement.  

 
It was agreed to invite the following witnesses: 
 

 Leaders of ELDC / BBC - Councillors Craig Leyland and Paul Skinner; 
 Finance Portfolio Holders for ELDC / BBC – Councillors Jonathan Noble and 

Richard Fry; 
 S151 Officer (former and current) – Adrian Sibley and Christine Marshall 
 Chief Executive – Rob Barlow 

 
Questions for witnesses were also discussed and it was agreed that the lines of 

enquiry be turned into questions and asked to witnesses as below: 
 

1. Are you happy with the progress that has been made so far in bringing 

together functions and teams across the alliance? (For Rob Barlow, Leaders) 
 

2. Do you feel the Alliance has mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; 
and are you confident that projected savings (money and capacity) are 
being achieved? (For S151 Officers & Portfolio Holders) 

 
3. What opportunities have been secured by the Councils’ working 

collaboratively together? (For all witnesses) 
 

4. Do you feel it has been possible to merge cultures? Have any difficulties 

arisen and how can this be managed? (For Rob Barlow, Leaders) 
 

Discussions were had around opportunities such as the Towns Fund and Levelling 
Up Fund. ICT progress was also discussed, as was staff turnover including reasons 
for leaving, with the panel requesting figures for comparison with previous years. 

 
It was agreed that 2 further meetings would be required and that they would be 

on Thursday 7th October at 6pm, followed by a final meeting on Thursday 14th 
October at 6pm. 

 
The Scrutiny Officer was asked to action the following requests: 

Page 17



Appendix E 

 
 Request an ICT road map from Jackie Wight with accompanying cover note; 

 Create, circulate, and analyse an all-member questionnaire; 
 Request information on staff surveys and ‘snapshots’ from Rachel Robinson; 

 Request information on staff turnover and information held on reasons for 
leaving from HR/PSPS. 

 

Date and Time: 7th October 2021, 6pm 
 

3. Questions for Councillor Skinner 
 
 

Councillor Skinner (CPS) made the following comments in response to the 
questions he was asked: 

 
 CPS is very happy with the alliance; it has been a challenge and sometimes 

there are gaps, but he has been pleasantly surprised; 

 He feels the councils have managed to combine expertise to benefit the 
alliance. For example, the Towns Fund and other bids have been more 

successful because of it; 
 Opportunities have included greater capacity and resilience, sharing of best 

practice and cost savings; 
 Difficulties with merging staff and cultures seems to have been minimal. 

 

The following points were also noted: 
 

 CPS is confident about the way forward and does not feel this is a fragile 
alliance; 

 There is a need to work together to the best for our areas; 

 There is a tendency for Boston to have a more negative outlook, but there 
is work ongoing to change that and ensure the residents are on board; 

 Senior officers felt some strain, particularly in the early stages, but overall, 
the right officers fill the right posts; 

 CPS is pleased with shared officer team the alliance has in place; 

 With all the changes and different ways of working, it is important to ensure 
people are on board; 

 CPS confirmed that ELDC and BBC Leaders, Deputies and finance portfolio 
holders have regular meetings with the Chief Executive; 

 Council sovereignty is not up for discussion. This alliance (and now 

partnership) works well as the 3 councils all have similar rural and coastal 
issues and can work together on these; 

 If devolution was forced upon us, we would have more say; 
 As policies come up for updating it will make sense to align them. 

 

4.  Questions for Councillors Noble (CJN) 
 

Councillor Noble made the following comments in response to the questions he 
was asked: 
 

  CJN noted that Covid has changed things in terms of finances, both ELDC 
and BBC received government funding and BBC currently has a surplus; 

Page 18



Appendix E 

 CJN advised that the alliance was on course for meeting the projected 
savings; 

 Opportunities for the future include taking advantage of economies of scale, 
working together, and learning from each other; 

 Procurement service will eventually align although certain things will need 
to be different; 

 Having a SPOC such as a shared Chief Executive and S151 Officer has 

meant financial savings; 
 

The following points were also noted: 
 

 It was felt by the panel that most residents had reacted positively to the 

changes; 
 It was noted that as the shared officer core has effective line management 

then the challenges of working across 2 (now 3) councils should be easily 
managed; 

 Although there may occasionally be operational issues,  .officers are picking 

up on these before they get out of hand; 
 Having 2 and now 3 councils will mean that policies start to align, but the 

strategic direction may differ as each council could have different priorities; 
 Concern was raised over the drainage board levies for next year 

 
5.  Discussion of questionnaire results 

 

 IT seems to be one of the main areas for concern, particularly the syncing 
of email addresses; 

 CJN suggested that most of the concerns raised may be allayed if councillors 
read the regular email updates and Leader briefing; 

 The panel were disappointed by the low number of responses and asked or 

the questionnaire to be circulated again; 
 Communication was flagged as an issue; although the new contact book 

that as just been circulated should go some way to ensure improvements; 
 Timings for responses from officers to councillors needs to be aligned across 

the alliance. CJN advised that he had raised this with the Chief Executive 

and the aspiration is that all councillor queries should receive a response 
within 2 days; 

 CPS advised that there is a discussion regarding having an officer across 
the partnership to collate and track councillor queries moving forward. 

 

Emerging Recommendations (from 23/09 and 07/10): 
 

 Shared email address for officers; 
 Officer capacity; 
 Communications between Councillors and Officers; 

 Progress on ICT alignment. 
 

6.  Next meeting  
 
It was confirmed that the next meeting would be on 14th October 2021.  

 
The Scrutiny Officer was asked to action the following requests: 

 

Page 19



Appendix E 

 All Councillors not in attendance to be sent a recording of tonight’s meeting, 
along with a request to listen to it in preparation for the meeting on the 

14th; 
 The councillor questionnaire to be readvertised to all ELDC and BBC 

councillors for an extra week; 
 Information requested at the first meeting to be circulated to the panel once 

received. 

 
Date and Time: 14th October 2021, 6pm 

 
In response to a number of questions, the following information was provided from 
the witnesses, along with a number of comments from panel members: 

 
 

 Rob Barlow indicated he was happy with the results of the staff survey and 
believed anything above 60% was a positive result. He thinks the changes 
everyone has gone through including the pandemic, home working, 

alliance/partnership, have heightened normal anxieties. 
 Councillor Leyland felt there was a lot of context to read into the survey 

results, it being such an unsettled time had not helped. He felt the situation 
does need monitoring, as so much has been expected of staff over last 18 

months. It is hard to quantify where you want to be in a %, it is important 
to understand why figures are where they are. 

 It was noted that satisfaction is difficult to gauge, the panel mostly felt it 

was a reasonable figure and that communication from senior staff ensures 
others feel included and informed. 

 Regarding the survey, it was confirmed that a full survey was done but 
there is a focus on 4 key areas for tracker surveys each quarter. The panel 
suggested a need to dig down into the results to check it is not a particular 

service area that has concerns. 
 Regarding updates, the Chief Executive sends out a weekly email or video 

to all staff. The 2 Councils have also launched their ‘values and behaviour’ 
work, which builds on information from surveys. 

 

 Regarding staff turnover, Rob Barlow indicated numbers were as expected, 
many due to retirement, promotion etc. Councillor Leyland also felt the level 

was acceptable, not impacting on service areas and not creating gaps and 
vacancies. 

 Rob Barlow indicated that historically lots of movement is with people 

moving between councils in the area. This may impact the alliance / 
partnership and relocation, as there will the possibility to offer more 

development opportunities within the partnership as well as attracting 
people from a wider area. 

 A number of examples of opportunities from collaborative working were 

noted. The main example is the Town’s Fund – the council’s received the 
highest allocation of funds and have been held as an exemplar by 

Government. Also, ELDC heritage and tourism bids were better because of 
BBC input and BBC property schemes were better for ELDC input. Also, joint 
bids have just gone in for the levelling up fund and for the Pandemic 

response, the alliance provided extra resilience. 
 Drainage board issues were raised, and  a discussion was had on whether 

the new 3-way partnership could have more influence. The panel were 

Page 20



Appendix E 

advised that 3-way working had already begun, including joint pitches to 
government etc.  

 Adrian Sibley indicated that BBC was able to save money on a new IT 
system as they could use the ELDC/SHDC system and arrangements. 

 Procurement – panel members suggested the need for an aligned policy. It 
was advised that before she left, Alison Penn had mapped some timelines 
on when contracts were due for renewal (contract mapping). Currently the 

3 Councils have differing arrangements for procurement, but the plan is to 
look at a collective approach for this area. There has been a new 

procurement resource appointed who will look at strategy, spend 
analysis/review among other issues. At a strategic level, it is recognised we 
need higher level of expertise than we currently have. Christine Marshall 

advises the panel that the plan is to align as much as possible to make 
procurement a smooth process for the officer core. She also indicated this 

was a key opportunity for savings moving forwards and for avoiding 
increases. 

 Councillor Leyland advised the panel that it was difficult initially to find time 

for joint working, but we have good reasons to do it, so it was worth the 
extra effort. Central Government usually hit local government first, so our 

partnership will protect us, help us save money and give us capacity to 
deliver too. He also noted the partnership has ambitions and  wants this to 

work, with regular joint meetings as 2 councils now moving to 3. He noted 
there were more than needed at the moment in order to learn how each 
other works, so we can model the best way. 

 Rob Barlow indicated that the partnership is still early days, everyone is 
learning the different cultures and ways of working. The partnership has 

not reduced staff numbers so are better resourced. This is a new concept, 
so the partnership has had some scrutiny from peers. Rob Barlow noted 
that the first 6 months are key to ensuring the partnership is landed 

successfully. External partners keen to meet with us as a 3, this means we 
do things once instead of 3 times. Culture is easier for staff as there is no 

politics involved, just new colleagues. There is a need to ensure challenge 
/ opportunities for members is embraced to ensure things are not territorial. 

 

 The panel were keen to explore opportunities to come together to be 
aspirational for their areas while keeping sovereignty. 

 Rob Barlow indicated the partnership now has Growth and Delivery Teams 
in the new structure, which will help land big ideas, projects, investments. 
For example,  there could be discussions with highways on A16 as this road 

is key to all 3 areas for different reasons. There could also be other 
opportunities in agriculture and health.  

 Councillor Leyland advised of the need to take a strategic view, an example 
being the challenge to the Environment Agency to secure development of 
tourism on the coast. There can also be joint challenge where needed on 

heritage, agriculture, tourism. Teams need to keep at it and work together 
to get things done. 

 Regarding devolution, Councillor Leyland believes there is more potential to 
get a better deal as a partnership of 3 and we have to be prepared to deal 
with issue if arises. 

 Overall, it was felt that the Councils are on track to achieve the projected 
savings. It was noted that the move to a triple partnership will make the 

Page 21



Appendix E 

original projected savings for the alliance savings more difficult to quantify, 
but there will be a new 3-way target moving forwards. 

 
Agreement of potential recommendations 

 
A number of recommendations emerged over the course of the meeting around 
the staff survey, government lobbying, and partnership working. These were 

discussed, along with emerging recommendations from previous meetings. 10 
recommendations were drafted and agreed at the meeting. It was agreed that the 

final report to accompany the recommendations would be drafted by the Chair 
and Vice Chair and circulated to the members of the panel before being submitted 
to the relevant Committees for consideration. 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 4 NOVEMBER 2021 

SUBJECT: LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23 

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR JONATHAN NOBLE, PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: SHARON HAMMOND, HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Council Tax Support Scheme was introduced in April 2013, and the 2021/22 scheme was 

agreed in November 2020. This report informs members on the introduction and the operation 

of the scheme to date and provides an update on the process and the proposals put forward for 

consultation, prior to the formal approval of the 2022/23 scheme by Council in January 2022. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee reviews the scheme to date, reviews the proposals for the 2022/23 

scheme, then makes recommendations on the Council Tax Support Scheme for the 2022/23 

year for Cabinet consideration in December 2021 prior to Council approval in January 2022. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To enable Members to review the operation of the scheme to date and consider scheme 

options for 2022/23 prior to the recommendation of a scheme to Cabinet and then Council once 

the consultation process is complete.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

To not undertake a review. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 2



 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme provides reductions in Council Tax to give financial 

assistance to people on low incomes.   

 

1.2 As part of the Government’s programme of welfare reform, the previous Council Tax 

Benefit (CTB) scheme was replaced by localised support arrangements for Council Tax from 

2013/14, with Government grant support reduced by 10%. From April 2013, Councils have 

been required to establish local Council Tax Support (CTS) schemes. The support is in the 

form of a discount applied to the Council Tax demand notice.  

1.3  The Welfare Reform Act also contains provisions regarding the introduction of Universal 

Credit which impacts on the future administration of Housing Benefit. There continues to 

be a phased approach to the introduction of a new single welfare credit. Universal Credit 

roll-out for the Boston area began in April 2015. Universal Credit full service was rolled out 

in the Boston area in September 2018 for new claims only.  Migration of existing claims is 

not now due to be complete until at least 2024.  

1.4  The 2013/14 introduction of CTS was accompanied by a cash-limited government grant to 

councils.  This was taken into account in setting the Council Tax Base and when forming the 

first year’s CTS local scheme.  

1.5 Whilst the new regulations provided councils with flexibility to set up their own local 

arrangements, the Government expressed clear intentions in relation to certain aspects of a 

local scheme. These included:  

 For pensioners there should be no change in the level of awards because of this reform. 

This includes both existing and new benefit claimants.   (The scheme for pensioners 

continues to be prescribed providing Council Tax Support up to 100%). 

 Councils were required to also consider ensuring support for other vulnerable groups  

 Local schemes should support work incentives and avoid disincentives to move into 

work.  

1.6  The Government expects that Councils should continue to have a significant degree of 

control over how expenditure on the current council tax support bill is achieved. This 

includes freedom to collaborate to reduce costs, develop schemes that support priorities 

that are shared by a number of neighbouring authorities and the ability to manage financial 

risks.  

1.7  At the time of setting up Boston’s first local scheme, the Council Tax Benefit caseload was 

made up in the following way –  

Table 1 - Profile of CTB customers (as at July 2012)  

 Number Percentage CTB expenditure 

Working Age 3,194 50.05%  

Pensioners 3,187 49.95%  

Total 6,381 100% £4,889,578* 
* A breakdown of working age and pension age expenditure is not available.  

Page 24



1.8  Levels of CTS expenditure and caseload fluctuate through the year, and it is only at the end 

of a financial year that we can be assured of the total expenditure incurred. Pensioner 

caseloads tend to attract higher levels of awards than those of working age. This is due to 

factors such as higher levels of income, non-dependents in the household and generally 

going on and off benefits in the working age claimant group. 

 

2. BOSTON’S LOCAL SCHEME 

2.1 Since 2013 the Council’s local scheme applies a number of principles:-   

 Protecting the most vulnerable – pension-age and war pensioners  

 Continuation of a means-testing approach, based on the previous Council Tax Benefit 
rules as far as possible  

 The scheme will be reviewed annually  

 Protecting war pensioners from reductions in support  

 Maximum entitlement capped at 75% of Council Tax liability  
 
2.2  The review of the scheme for 2021/22 identified that the projected costs were contained 

within the budgeted resources. A similar scheme to previous years, with up ratings in line 
with the Government for specific deductions, was approved for the current year.  In 
addition, it was agreed that claims in respect of working age applicants who are working 
and in receipt of Universal Credit would be reassessed every 3 months, thereby reducing 
the frequency of Council Tax bills and re-profiling of instalments. 

 
 

3. CURRENT SCHEME FIGURES  
 

3.1 At 31 March 2021, the caseload and spend was as follows – 
 

 Number Percentage of Total CTS expenditure 

Working Age 2,340 51.55% 1,659,259 

Pensioners 2,199 48.45% 2,161,590 

Total @ 31/03/21 4,539 100% 3,820,849 

 
3.2  Despite a reduction in total caseload compared to 31 March 2020, the outturn position for 

scheme expenditure in 2020/21 was a 0.33% increase when compared to 2019/20. This is 
primarily due to the increase in council tax, including charge for Adult Social Care. The cost 
of the scheme is borne by major preceptors (LCC, LPCC & BBC) in proportion to their 
precepts. The cost to the Borough Council is approximately 11%.  
 

3.3 At 31 August 2021, caseload and expenditure for 2021/22 was as follows –  
 

 Number Percentage of Total CTS expenditure 

Working Age 2,287 51.45% 1,713,155 

Pensioners 2,158 48.55% 2,123,384 

Total 4,445 100% 3,836,539 

 
This will continue to fluctuate, and final expenditure will not be determined until 31 March 
2022. 

  

Page 25



 
4. PROPOSALS FOR THE 2022/23 COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME  

 
4.1 The DWP has not published its plans yet for completing the full migration to Universal 

Credit for working age claimants and the timescale therefore remain uncertain, although it 
is not unlikely to be until at least 2024. 
 
With numbers of Universal Credit claimants rising due to the covid pandemic, the change 
introduced by this Council from April 2021 to reassess working age claims who are working 
and in receipt of universal credit every 3 months has helped to provide some consistency 
and stability for claimants, reducing the frequency of new bills and re-profiling of 
instalments.  The scheme remains flexible ensuring discretion for earlier re-assessment 
where an applicant has a significant or permanent change in their income within the 3-
month period. 
 

4.2 Given the ongoing uncertainties of covid, and the migration to Universal Credit, in 
considering the options for the 2022/23 CTS scheme, there is no overriding reason for 
fundamental change at this time.  The change made last year to reduce the frequency of 
changes for Universal Credit claimants has been beneficial and will continue to form part of 
the ongoing principles of the scheme for future years.  
 

4.3 Through the consultation, views for 2022/23 are being sought on: -  
 
1. Do you think that the Council should retain its current scheme for the next financial 

year, to provide continuity?  
 

2. Each year the Government reviews and generally increases the amount people need to 
live on for the calculation of welfare benefit. By applying the same changes to our 
Council Tax Support scheme, we would ensure that our scheme remains up to date with 
the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) allowances and premiums each year. 
 
Do you think we should increase our scheme in line with the Department for Work and 
Pensions provisions for 2022/23 and future years?  

 
4.3.1 Retention of the current scheme for the next financial year will provide continuity for 

claimants at a time when they might be experiencing other financial and personal 
difficulties due to covid and the current economic climate.  There would be no major 
changes to the level of Council Tax Support that a customer receives. 
It will also maintain a consistent approach in respect of the core principles of Boston’s CTS 
scheme since its introduction in 2013/14.  
It continues to recognise the additional needs of the vulnerable through the approach to its 
calculation. 
 

4.3.2  Updating the scheme with the DWP uprating’s for 2022/23 will maintain a consistent 
approach to the previous scheme decisions, and in turn it will maintain alignment with the 
DWP national benefit uprating provisions.  
 

4.4 Administrative Change  
4.4.1 The following administrative change is proposed for introduction into the CTS scheme.  This 

will not change the core scheme policy, its intent or principles, but it will make it easier for 
new claimants to access CTS.   

 
Page 26



4.4.2 Link CTS to the award of UC 

Most new claims for CTS are received by claimants who have applied for Universal Credit. 

Applications for UC are made to the Department for Work and Pensions, applications for 

Council Tax Support need to be made to the local authority.   

This means that the claimant must deal with two organisations and make separate 

applications to get the help they need.   

Where a UC claimant indicates they would like to apply for Council Tax Support when they 

make their UC claim, details are sent to the relevant council through the Universal Credit 

Data Sharing hub (UCDS). 

 

The introduction of a link to the award of UC for CTS would remove the current 
requirement for the customer to make a separate application for CTS.   
 
It is proposed that for 2022/23 the scheme is amended to enable a UCDS new claim notice 
from the DWP, to be treated as a CTS application, thereby simplifying the process for the 
claimant. 

 
 

5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
 
5.1  The Council is required to consult with major preceptors and the public in terms of any 

scheme changes. Any consultation should run for a reasonable period of time, and the 
responses to the consultation will be made available to members, and ultimately Council, as 
part of the decision-making process.  

 
5.2  The financial risk of the localised scheme is shared with Lincolnshire County Council and the 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire, as our major precepting authorities. Unlike 
Council Tax Benefit which was a fully funded scheme, Council Tax Support is now a local 
discount, and has the effect of reducing the council tax base.  

 
5.3  The final decision regarding the local scheme design rests with this Council.  
 
 

6. DECISION MAKING AND CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 In order to ensure that the 2022/23 localised CTS scheme is implemented for April 2022, 

the following timetable of consultation and decision making is being followed:- 
 

Consultation  
- Major preceptors, public and other interested 

parties, Corporate & Community Committee 

22 September 2021 to  
12 November 2021 

Consultation Response Analysis 19 November 2021 

Cabinet (to recommend the 2022/23 CTS scheme) 8 December 2021 

Full Council (to approve the 2022/23 CTS scheme) 17 January 2022 

Implementation of 2022/23 CTS scheme 1 April 2022 

 
6.2 All feedback from the consultation will be considered as part of the final 2022/23 scheme 

decision making process. 
 

 

Page 27



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

As advised, the proposal for the 2022/23 CTS scheme is in line with the current scheme and in 
line with the costs of the current year scheme.  The actual financial impact of any scheme will be 
subject to the normal fluctuations in demand as determined by various factors including 
economics, needs and demographics as well as overall council tax base which are part of the 
normal MTFS and consultation process to be undertaken. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Council tax reduction scheme regulations 2013 requires that councils review local schemes 

on an annual basis. 

 

RISK IMPLICATIONS  
 
None in regard to this report.  There is a context of risk and uncertainty in regard to committee 
considerations.  
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None in regard to this report. The existing Local CTS scheme continues the DWP’s previous 

Council Tax Benefit scheme conventions established over many years, regarding protections for 

vulnerable groups, including children, the disabled and war pensioners.  

 

The current scheme and its equalities are part of the process. An Equality Impact Assessment is 

not required at this time. 

 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation for the 2022/23 Council Tax Support scheme proposal, as agreed with the Portfolio 

Holder for Finance, is being carried out with major precepting authorities, and public. 

  

Page 28



The survey is published on the Council’s website and social media sites. An article has been placed 

in the Boston Bulletin. A copy of the survey and press release has been circulated to all Parish 

Councils a paper copy can also be requested by contacting the Council’s Transformation Officer. 

The consultation will run between 22 September and 12 November 2021.   

Consideration of the scheme proposals as set out in this report to the Corporate and Community 

Committee forms part of the consultation process. 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Sharon Hammond 

Head of Revenues and Benefits 

Sharon.hammond@pspsl.co.uk 

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles 

Assistant Director – Finance 

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Name of Councillor (if required) 

 

  

Page 29

mailto:Sharon.hammond@pspsl.co.uk
mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk


FINANCE PROFORMA 

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:   

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue Cost      

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£  Enter committee here  

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet/Executive here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 

There are no financial implications arising at this stage. The report to Council seeking approval on 
the 2022/23 CTS scheme to be adopted will identify budgetary considerations which will then be 
included in the 2022/23 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy. 
 
 
Risk 

That future caseload increases, and/or that impacts of wider Welfare Reform measures accrue, and 
additional costs are incurred. 
 
 
Procurement 
n/a 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

n/a 

 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 30



 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 4 NOVEMBER 2021 

SUBJECT: LGA PEER REVIEW – PROGRESS UPDATE 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

REPORT AUTHOR: JAMES GILBERT, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – ORGANISATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides the Committee with an update on the delivery of recommendations that 

were put forward by the Local Government Association following their Corporate Peer Review 

of the Council in 2019 and a subsequent Health Check of the Communications Service.   

The table at Appendix A provides the status of each recommendation.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committees notes the progress made to deliver the recommendations. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

N/a  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

N/a 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 

 
1. This is a brief covering report to provide the Committee with an update on the delivery of 

the LGA Peer Review recommendations. 

 

2. In June 2019 the Council invited a team of Peers into the Council to undertake a Corporate 

Review.  

 

3. Following the Corporate Review, a Health Check of the Communications Service also took 

place resulting in a number of specific communications-focused recommendations.   

 

4. Links to the detailed reports following the Review and Health Check are included in the 

‘Background Papers’ section to this report. 

 

5. Appendix A includes a table of the recommendations from the Peer Review and Health 

Check and their status, along with narrative. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/a 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

N/a 

 

RISK IMPLICATIONS  
 
N/a 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

N/a 

 

  Page 32



 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

N/a 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

N/a 

 

CONSULTATION 

N/a 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Update on Actions 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Corporate Peer Review http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-

content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-

Review.pdf  

Communications Health Check https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-

content/uploads/2021/09/LGA-Communications-health-

check-BBC.pdf  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation 

and Corporate Services  

Signed off by: James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation 

and Corporate Services  

Approved for publication: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader of the Council 

 

Page 33

http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/LGA-Communications-health-check-BBC.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/LGA-Communications-health-check-BBC.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/LGA-Communications-health-check-BBC.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

 

BBC Peer Review - Update on Actions 
 

Progress report against actions identified 
 

Recommendation Action Status 

Talk up Boston! Promoting the Borough more extensively and 
assertively would help to shape public perceptions to reflect your 
achievements and aspirations. 

The Council is proactive in its communication. Over the coming months it will be reviewing its overall external 
communications approach which will help to achieve this action. 

 

Define and communicate Boston’s brand and share it consistently 
and widely. This will embed and promote a positive place identify 
that the local community, businesses, and partners can coalesce 
behind. 

Clear Council brand, using the Boston skyline. New branding around Boston Town Deal as the focal point for 
Place. Consistency achieved through Comms team. Part of the review above. 

 

Take advice from the LGA Communications Improvement team. 
External guidance and advice can help match the communications 
service to the needs and ambitions of the Council. 

Recommendations from the review are included at Appendix A with a status update  

Invest in development of the administration to deliver more 
effective political leadership (i.e., external facilitated Cabinet vision 
and priority setting). This investment will support the Cabinet to 
perform their strategic leadership role, establish clear priorities, 
and ensure this vision is reflected in the Corporate Plan and 
associated strategies. 

Work has taken place with the Cabinet to support them in developing their strategic vision for Boston.  This 
was externally facilitated and has resulted in the Council adopting its new Corporate Strategy 

 

Realise this vision through allocating the right resources to support 
the new Corporate Plan (specifically the growth agenda) and link 
this to the MTFS and Transformation Plan. This will ensure the 
Council’s priorities, as set out in the new Corporate Plan and other 
key strategies, are aligned with the resources needed to deliver 
them. 

The Council has made a number of decisions over the past year that have created capacity, in both officer 
resource and budget, to further its priority areas of work. In addition to this, there is the potential for £41m of 
external funding to come into Boston through Towns Fund (already secured - £21m) and Levelling Up Fund 
(£20m). Economic Growth structure currently being reviewed. 

 

Develop a bold investment plan and explore innovative delivery 
models to support the PE21 project. By securing a delivery model 
that provides a long term income stream this will support the 
Council’s long term financial sustainability. 

The Boston Town Investment Plan has secured a town deal of £21.9m and further bid of £20m has been 
submitted for Levelling Up funding, which is focused on the regeneration of the PE21 area of Boston. As part 
of the Levelling Up Fund application, it has been identified there would be value in setting up a special purpose 
vehicle (SPV). This will enable the requirement to achieve spend in the 2021/22 financial year and efficiently 
manage the wider delivery of the regeneration of town through generating resources from the management 
of those assets which can be utilised for the ongoing regeneration of the town. 
 

 

Use systematic customer insight to ensure services are responsive 
to community and customer needs. Establishing an objective view 
of resident satisfaction will enable Boston BC to better target its 
activities and drive customer-centred service improvement. 

A survey has been commissioned as part of the Empowering Healthy Communities project to encourage local 
people to share their views about community and life in Boston. This will take place in the next few months 
and be followed up by a regular resident satisfaction survey after that. 
 
A recent restructure following the creation of the partnership with ELDC aims to create some capacity so we 
can do more to harness and deploy customer insight to shape service delivery and policy.  

 

Broader member development to support community leadership 
and effective representation. This will support frontline councillors 

A member development plan is in place and the member development budget has been doubled.  The plan 
has been informed by the needs of councillors (identified via a survey) as well as the corporate need for 

 

P
age 35



Appendix A 

 

to be effective community champions and ambassadors for the 
authority, the Borough, and all its communities. 

councillors. The LGA are delivering training to councillors in September 2021 around the new modell Code of 
Conduct. 

Refresh the workforce strategy and consider building on LGA 
workforce strategy themes. By using best practice guidance, 
Boston BC can align the refreshed Workforce Development 
Strategy to the new Corporate Plan priorities and Transformation 
Programme and future planning. 

A workforce development strategy has been put in place and is supported by a workforce development board.  

Broaden the scope and understanding of transformation to address 
the issues of service redesign, digital thinking, efficiency, and 
commercialisation. This will facilitate a step change in Boston BC’s 
overall pace of delivery and achievement of outcomes. 

The creation of the Partnership with ELDC has naturally provided more opportunities for service redesign as 
teams have come together. Each Assistant Director has put together a programme of service reviews and this 
will continue with the addition of the extended Partnership with SHDC. 

 

Harness capacity and willingness of local residents, community 
groups and businesses to ‘live’ and promote brand Boston. In doing 
so, Boston BC can leverage in additional capacity and resources to 
maximise added value from collaboration. 

Boston Town Deal is a focal point for residents and businesses to come together to move the town forward 
with the Board itself being made up of a diverse range of people who are all positive about Boston. 
 
The new Portfolio Holder for Waste Services has brought together local residents, community groups, 
charities, and local businesses to address local concerns about fly tipping and other environmental issues, e.g., 
the new Upcycling Sunday initiative. 

 

 
  P

age 36



Appendix A 

 

 
LGA Comms Health Check 

 

Recommendation Action Status 

Conduct a resident survey to understand how residents understand 
the Council, what matters to them and how they want to receive 
information. 

As part of the Empowering Health Communities project, Social Change UK have produced a resident survey.  This will help 
to understand how Boston’s communities work and feel.  Findings from the survey with desk research and social media 
listening exercises will support recommendations for how we best engage and empower communities in Boston in the 
future.  The survey is expected to be live in September 2021. 

 

Use the survey results to benchmark against other borough 
councils and as a baseline to measure future improvements in 
residents’ views and perceptions. 

Links to the survey. 
 
Can’t be completed until the above action has been undertaken. 

 

Continue to develop the Council’s new Corporate Plan, jointly 
owned by the Leader, Cabinet, Chief Executive and Corporate 
Management Team.  

Corporate Strategy adopted on 23rd November 2020.  

Should the Council choose to invest in resident surveys and focus 
groups, the findings should influence the new Corporate Strategy, 
communications strategy, and forward campaign planning. 

Links to the survey. 
 
The Council is looking how it can better use customer intelligence to inform policy, including behavioural insights, with the 
latter already underway as a specific stream of work. 

 

Create a communications strategy (including internal and external 
communications) with specific communications aims and 
objectives (aligned to the corporate priorities). The strategy should 
include key messages, measurable objectives, and clear methods 
for evaluation. 

Links to the survey. 
 
A review of the Council’s communications methods, including internal, is currently being undertaken.  The results of this 
will inform the Communications Strategy. 

 

Develop an annual campaign plan, signed off by the political and 
corporate leadership, to help prioritise activity and enable more 
strategic, integrated, and coordinated communications. 

A review of the Communication Team Structure has been completed resulting in Directorate aligned Communication 
leads. The leads work with their directorate to develop communication plans which will feed into a master annual 
campaign plan. April 2022 target date to align to the Corporate Delivery Plan. 

 

Work with the new Leader and Cabinet to develop a set of priority 
areas for communications (the ‘what do you want to be famous 
for?’ question). 

In discussions with politicians the following priority areas have been agreed for comms: 
 

1) Response to Covid-19 2) Waste Management 3) Economic Growth 

 

Establish a corporate narrative that tells the story of the Council 
and wider borough. The narrative will help residents, stakeholders 
and staff understand the councils’ ambitions, priorities and plans 
for the future. Bring this to life so staff and public can understand 
it. 

The Corporate Strategy contains a narrative that sets outs the Council’s ambition for the Borough. 
 
There is a need to ensure that all communications activity is linked back to the Corporate Strategy so it’s clear to our 
audience how actions deliver on the ambitions of the Council for the Borough. 

 

Use this narrative and strategic messaging to run through all 
council communications. Ensure communications are informed and 
involved from the beginning of key projects, such as PE21. 

A review of the Communication Team Structure has been completed resulting in Directorate aligned Communication 
leads.  Using this approach ensures that our communication experts are integral to the project process and their 
development and planning.  The leads work with their directorate to develop communication plans. 

 

Explore opportunities to create an engaging place brand for 
Boston. This should be led by the corporate and political leadership 
of the council along with partner organisations across the borough. 

A visual place brand has been created for the Borough and is being rolled out. 
 
Tank PR are delivering a PRIDE of place campaign for the Borough. 

 

Develop a rigorous approach to evaluating communications 
activity. 

Insights are used to support activity within the service such as when best to issue information to the community.  Wider 
evaluation within the service linked to campaign success is something that is required and will be picked up as part of the 
annual Communications Campaign Plan. 

 

P
age 37



Appendix A 

 

Move the team towards an enabling, influencing and advising role 
and implement processes that can help colleagues in the services 
to own more of their own communications (e.g., style guide, 
toolkits, facts and figures, key messages, platform for email 
communications with external audiences). 

The formation of an alliance with East Lindsey District Council has enabled the small communications team at Boston 
Borough Council to merge with those at East Lindsey District Council to create a single shared communications service.  
The team now have more of a focus on advising and supporting services in developing specific communications strategies.  
We feel this achieves this recommendation.  

 

Review the Council’s approach to internal communications. 
Consider re-instating the regular staff bulletin, ensuring that key 
corporate messages as well as the organisation’s future ambitions 
are understood internally. 

An initial review was undertaken in August 2020 with a further review currently underway.  The regular staff bulletin has 
been reintroduced along with a closed staff Facebook group and employee reference group. 

 

Embed a more strategic approach to social media, ensuring that 
content is short and engaging, messages are in line with council 
priorities. 

A real strength of the communications service is the ability to create good quality social media content that the 
community engage with;content is linked to strategic objectives. 
 
There is more we need to do to create our own video content and we need to understand the platforms our community 
are using better.    

 

Implement an ‘appropriate use’ policy for the Council’s social 
media channels. 

A Social Media Acceptable Use Policy has been developed for implementation across BBC and ELDC Social Media channels.  
This is currently progressing through the Council’s scrutiny and decision-making processes and is expected to be 
implemented by the end of October 2021. 
 

 

Develop protocols and guidance which clearly set out the roles and 
responsibilities of Members in relation to social media and media 
relations. Support this through a programme of practical training. 

This has been delivered through a training programme hosted by former BBC presenter, Rod Whiting.  

 

P
age 38



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 4TH NOVEMBER 2021 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY 

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

NO 

COUNCILLOR NIGEL WELTON 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

SUZANNE ROLFE, INSIGHTS & TRANSFORMATION MANAGER 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

Boston Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy was adopted by Full Council in November 2020. 

This report provides an opportunity to review the priorities to ensure that they are still relevant 

and to recommend any changes to the Strategy if required. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

To consider whether there are any changes required to the priorities in the Corporate Strategy. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To contribute to the annual review of the Corporate Strategy 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

To not carry out an annual review 

 

  

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



BACKGROUND 

1. Boston’s Corporate Strategy was adopted by Full Council on 23rd November 2020, following 

consultation with stakeholders including Corporate & Community Committee. 

2. The Strategy is published on the website at: https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-

content/uploads/2020/11/Corporate-Strategy-2020-to-2024.pdf  

3. The 4 priorities are: 

 Priority 1 – People Focused (Our Main Priority) 

 Priority 2 – Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth 

 Priority 3 – Environmental Awareness and Accountability 

 Priority 4 – Delivering high quality services and maximising use of technology to support 

residents 

4. The Annual Delivery Plan, setting out the key objectives and achievements for 2021/2022 is 

published on the website at: https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-

content/uploads/2021/07/Annual-Delivery-Plan-2021-22-All-Services.pdf  

 

REPORT 

1. The introduction to the Corporate Strategy mentions the context at the time, around Covid-19, 

Towns Fund and the strategic alliance with East Lindsey District Council.  Even if there are no 

amendments required to the priorities within the Strategy, the introduction will require 

updating to reflect a more up-to-date position including the new Partnership with South 

Holland District Council and East Lindsey District Council. 

2. The Corporate Strategy sets out 4 priorities. These are set out below for review by Corporate 

and Community Scrutiny Committee to consider whether or not these remain the right 

priorities for the Borough. 

Priority 1 – People Focused (Our Main Priority) 

Boston – Live, Work and Visit – Amazing Place to Live 

We want Boston to be a place where people want to live, a place where they can thrive in their 

local communities, feel safe, secure, healthy and welcome. 

We will: 

 Help ensure our community continues to feel safe by maintaining our existing community 

safety funding/resources. 

 Invest and support growth to meet local housing needs by co-funding affordable housing 

delivery. 

 Educate and enforce to improve the quality of rented properties in the Borough. 

 Provide affordable and accessible leisure opportunities for all. 

 Work in partnership to deliver improved transport networks, both road and rail, particularly 

to Lincoln as well as other cities. 

 Work in partnership to secure excellent broadband to all homes in the Borough. 

Page 40

https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Corporate-Strategy-2020-to-2024.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Corporate-Strategy-2020-to-2024.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Annual-Delivery-Plan-2021-22-All-Services.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Annual-Delivery-Plan-2021-22-All-Services.pdf


Fantastic Place to Work – We want people to THINK BOSTON, Think Business 

We will: 

 Make Boston a healthy and safe place to work. 

 Promote growth and infrastructure including improved rail, road networks and waterways. 

 Work with utility companies to ensure that local infrastructure is fit for purpose (i.e 

broadband, electricity supply and mobile phone networks) 

 Promote Boston’s economy, industry and opportunities. 

Memorable Place to Visit – VISIT Boston 

We want Boston to be a diverse and vibrant town to explore and discover, with a range of quality 

national and independent shops, wonderful dining experiences and a unique history and heritage. 

We want to build on this to further develop the visitor economy and position Boston as a leading 

visitor destination. 

We will: 

 Manage and enhance the heritage assets of Boston to increase tourism. 

 Seek new opportunities to encourage visitors to Boston through culture, arts, events and 

sport. 

 Increase the promotion of Boston as a visitor destination and improve its public spaces. 

 Work with external agencies towards achieving water level management on the Haven 

through the town. 

 

Priority 2 – Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth  

As a regional sub-centre of the county, we want to grow Boston’s economy to ensure it remains a 

thriving town where people choose to live, work and visit. In doing so it is important we 

understand the needs of our communities and achieve growth in a way that is inclusive. 

This includes ensuring the Council is fit for purpose and maintains its robust financial governance, 

remains financially sustainable and continues its journey towards becoming truly commercial. 

Sustainable Economic Growth 

We will: 

 Support existing business. 

 Further develop our relationship with the port to support its growth and increase 

international trade links. 

 Ensure potential investors recognise Boston as a Borough open for investment. 

 Signpost opportunities for funding, partnering, learning skills and business growth support. 

 Promote skills and enterprise through partnerships with education providers and 

businesses. 

 Use available evidence to inform the decisions we make about growth initiatives. 

  

Page 41



Inward Investment 

We will: 

 Promote and facilitate inward investment by working with strategic partners to make 

Boston a location of choice. 

 Work with Boston Town Deal Board to prepare the Investment Plan and interventions and 

deliver the identified projects. 

 Develop the bold investment plan and explore delivery models for the PE21 ambition. 

 Equip the town centre to adapt to behavioural change and economic growth more 

generally, including developing the retail experience. 

 Implement the Local Plan and undertake specific master planning and policy reviews to 

support delivery of growth within the Borough. 

Promote Boston’s Potential 

We will: 

 Promote Boston regionally, nationally and internationally as a place to live, work and visit. 

 To continue to develop existing commercial and other arrangements to further promote 

Boston internationally. 

 Promote trade and tourism opportunities created by the multinational community of the 

area. 

 Promote Boston as a visitor hub for the area. 

 Develop our membership of the New Hanseatic League (Die Hanse), to promote tourism in 

Boston Borough and Lincolnshire in general. 

 Build on the transatlantic relationship with Boston USA. 

 

Priority 3 – Environmental Awareness and Accountability 

The Council declared a climate change emergency in January 2020, committing to reduce the 

Council’s carbon footprint and become net zero carbon in advance of the timetable declared by UK 

Parliament. The Borough Council will play its role to ensure we begin to reverse the impact on 

climate change. We will encourage others to follow our example and be more environmentally 

aware. 

We will: 

 Develop a Carbon Reduction Plan for the Council to achieve the target agreed. 

 Ensure that every service and policy deliver on the climate change commitments of the 

Council to support positive environmental impact on the Borough. 

 Proactively educate and enforce against environmental crime, such as fly tipping and 

littering, to both protect the environment and keep the Borough clean and tidy. 

 Work with partners to encourage the community to produce less waste and recycle more. 

 Be climate aware and spearhead the change in thinking about the impact that our actions 

have, not only on the local environment here in Boston but also on the entire planet. 

  

Page 42



Priority 4 – Delivering high quality services and maximising use of technology to support 

residents 

There is continued pressure on funding to Local Government, whilst at the same time the demand 

is increasing for many of the services we deliver. Making use of the latest technology will increase 

the efficiency of our services so we can deliver more for our communities. There is also the 

opportunity to be more creative in the ways we generate income to fund our core services. 

We will: 

 Make better use of technology and data to reduce costs and improve performance and 

efficiency. 

 Produce and deliver a Workforce Development Strategy that supports the delivery of the 

Corporate Strategy. 

 Seek new and more creative ways to generate income to support the Council’s ambitions. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
No financial implications specific to this report 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

No legal implications specific to this report 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Priority 3 of the Corporate Strategy 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

No equality and safeguarding implications specific to this report 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 
CONSULTATION 

Consultation with the Corporate & Community Committee 

 
APPENDICES 

None 

 
  

Page 43



BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 
CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

This report has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 
REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Suzanne Rolfe; suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: James Gilbert; james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Cllr Nigel Welton; nigel.welton@boston.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 44

mailto:suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk
mailto:nigel.welton@boston.gov.uk


 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

6 JULY 2021 
 

1. Contract Arrangements – Fly Tipping Enforcement 
2. Scrutiny Panel Topic – Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance  

Andy Fisher 
James Gilbert  

Cllr Jonathan Noble  
-  

    

20 JULY 2021 South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership James Gilbert  Cllr Nigel Welton  
    

17 AUG 2021  Community Governance Review Lorraine Bush Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

16 SEPT 2021 
 

Pilgrim Hospital Operating Model – A debate with representatives 
from the Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) and 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) 

Chairman /  
Andy Fisher   

  

Cllr Martin Griggs 
 
 

    

4 NOV 2021 
 

1. Joint BBC-ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance – Report by 
the Joint Scrutiny Panel Chairman 

2. Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 
3. Local Government Association (LGA) Peer Review – Progress 

Update  
4. Annual Review of the Corporate Strategy  

Cllr Judith Skinner 
 

Sharon Hammond 
James Gilbert 

 
“ 
 

- 
 

Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Paul Skinner 

 
Cllr Nigel Welton 

 
    

13 JAN 2022 1. Lincolnshire Discretionary Housing Assistance Policy 
2. The Legal Framework for Housing Control 

Stuart Horton 
Andy Fisher 

 

Cllr Martin Griggs 
“ 

    

17 FEB 2022 
 

   

    

7 APRIL 2022 
 

   

    

26 MAY 2022 
 

   

    

 
 
 

 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A: Q1 Performance 2021/22 

Performance Key 

Performance  Trend 

Achieved or 
exceeded target 

Within an Agreed 
Tolerance 

Outside of Agreed 
Tolerances 

Numbers have 
increased 

Improvement in 
trend or service 

No significant change  
Numbers have 

decreased 

Deterioration in 
trend or service 

       

 

Performance Overview  

Boston Borough Council KPIs 

Assets Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

ASB001 Percentage of car parking income received against agreed budget L 63.59% 100.00% 

ASB002 Percentage of commercial rent received against agreed budget J 104.30% 100.00% 

Housing and Wellbeing Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

HWB001 Number of properties improved through Council intervention J 25 20 

HWB002 Percentage of cases opened at homelessness prevention stage (i.e. before they have become homeless)  Not available   70.00% 

Commentary: This information is not currently available from Boston’s housing IT system. A new system is in development and will enable us to report in future. 

HWB003 
Percentage of homelessness cases that were opened at homelessness prevention stage that resulted in the customer not 
becoming homeless 

 Not available   70.00% 

Commentary: As above – not currently available 

HWB004 Number of verified rough sleepers (quarterly snapshot, verified at street count) L 5 0 

Commentary: Achieving zero is very challenging but this is the Government's aim, so we are trying to achieve this aspirational target. 

HWB005 Number of families with children placed into B&B for more than 6 calendar weeks  Not available   0 

Commentary: As above – not currently available 

Organisation and Corporate Support 
Performance 

Latest 
Value 

Target 

OCA001 Percentage of Alliance workforce who said 'yes' when asked if they felt valued at work L 61.58% 84.00% 

Commentary: This is a new measure so previous data is not available for accurate target setting until year end. Work is underway to drive up completion rates of the survey 
and to address the issues raised, including the launch of the Values & Behaviours for the Strategic Alliance on 1st July 2021. This includes a plan of embedding activity currently 
running up to March 2022. 

P
age 47



Boston Borough Council KPIs 

Operations Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

OPB001 Percentage of household waste collected for recycling and composting K 39.73% 41% 

OPB002 Percentage of recycling collected that is contaminated and unable to be recycled Not available    28.00% 

OPB003 Percentage of fly-tips collected within 3 working days of being reported J 95.77% 95.00% 

OPB004 Market stall occupancy rate - percentage occupied against the target Not available    70.00% 

Planning Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

PLB001 Percentage of major planning applications determined within 13/16 weeks L 0.00% 65.00% 

PLB002 Percentage of minor planning application determined within 8 weeks L 54.35% 75.00% 

PLB003 Percentage of other planning applications determined within 8 weeks K 74.60% 75.00% 

Commentary: These are new measures for planning, which relate purely to the statutory deadlines and do not include agreed extensions as previously and as measured 
nationally. For comparison, these performance measures all exceed the national minimum requirement (major applications 100% (national target 60%); minor applications 
93.48% (national target 70%); other applications 93.65% (national target 70%). There are many reasons applications can go beyond their statutory period (e.g. negotiations, 
amendments, Committee decisions etc). However, most of these are subsequently determined 'in time' through longer periods agreed with agents/applicants. In addition, the 
ongoing changes and general workloads within the service will impact on performance in the short term. 

Regulations Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

RGB001 Percentage of food premises inspections completed against the Food Standards Agency annual inspection plan L 62.77% 100.00% 

Commentary: During this quarter the covid response has been the focus for our Environmental Health teams, responding to service requests and providing business advice. 
The focus of the team has shifted to planning and delivering the Food Standards Agency (FSA) Recovery Plan for Local Authorities and re-commencing routine food premises 
inspections, suspended by the FSA until 30th June, now that businesses are re-opening following the easing of national restrictions. 

PSPS Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

PSB001 Time to process new Benefit claims (days) [BR&BIND005a] L 22.70 10.00 

Commentary: Quarter 1 results reflect the first quarter after a ‘lift and transfer’ of colleagues and associated services from to PSPS and as such performance is likely to be the 
same as it would have been if services remained. In due course, and after our respective benefits systems are aligned, PSPS will be able to provide much greater flexibility and 
resilience to peaks in demand such as those experienced in Q1 of this year. Volumes are unprecedented, with a 38% incoming work increase compared to last year, and this 
data excludes the Track and Trace processing which is adding further operational demand. PSPS have already implemented an automated process which is speeding up our 
response rates for many claimants. We have also reduced the inherited backlog down from 11,000 documents to 2,000. We are confident that processing times will improve 
for the rest of 2021/22, but we also note that in these unprecedented times forecasting is very difficult and we need to consider the possible impact of the furlough scheme 
ending shortly. Performance in this area is monitored daily. 

PSB002 Time to process Benefit change events (days) [BR&BIND005b] J 12.35 14.00 

PSB003 Council Tax collection rate [BR&BIND003] J 26.94% 26.00% 

PSB004 NDR collection rate [BR&BIND002] J 34.61% 30.00% 
 

P
age 48



 

 

        BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL                Appendix B  

FORWARD PLAN 

1 NOVEMBER 2021 TO 31 OCTOBER 2022 

The Forward Plan is a forecast of decisions which are expected to be taken by the Cabinet in the next twelve months. 
 
This Plan constitutes 28 day notice as required by virtue of Regulations 5(2) and 9(2) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information (England) Regulations 2012.  
 
The Boston Borough Council definition of a key decision is: 

 A decision which results in the authority incurring expenditure which is, or involves the making of savings which are significant having 

regard to the authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 Be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of the Borough. 

Decisions set out in this Plan will be taken by the Cabinet unless otherwise specified.  All decisions included in this Plan will be taken on the 
basis of a written report and will be published on the Council’s website before the meeting. 
 
Please note that the decision dates are indicative and occasionally subject to change.  
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the 
Plan can be viewed free of charge at the Customer Services Desk, Municipal Building, West Street, Boston, or on the Council’s website, 
www.mybostonuk.com 
 
If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the decisions outlined in the Plan, please submit them in writing to the contact 
officer identified against each decision in the Plan, at least 2 working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. 
 
Agendas, decisions and minutes are published on the Council’s website www.mybostonuk.com 
 
Cabinet Members:  
 
Cllr Paul Skinner (Leader)    Cllr Tracey Abbott  Cllr Deborah Evans  Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Nigel Welton (Deputy Leader)  Cllr Richard Austin  Cllr Martin Griggs 

 

P
age 49

http://www.mybostonuk.com/
http://www.mybostonuk.com/


 

 

Report Title and  
Summary of Content 

Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

Boston City Status - Boston's 
application to become a city in a 
competition launched to celebrate 
the Queen's Platinum Jubilee next 
year 
 

Key Full Council 
22 Nov 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Lydia Rusling, 
Assistant Director - 
Towns Fund  
lydia.rusling@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Lincolnshire Women's Concordat - 
to consider signing up to the 
Lincolnshire Women's Strategy 
and support the work to help 
prevent entry into the criminal 
justice system, and improve 
support for those already in it. 
 

Non Key 8 Dec 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Peter Hunn, 
Community Safety 
Manager  
peter.hunn@bosto
n.gov.uk, Emily 
Spicer, Assistant 
Director - 
Wellbeing and 
Community 
Leadership  
emily.spicer@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Empowering Healthy Communities 
- Councillor Grants Scheme - A 
progress report to show impact 
and outcomes achieved through 
the grants scheme 
 

Non Key 8 Dec 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Jonathan Challen, 
Safer Communities 
Service Manager  
jonathan.challen@
e-lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Martin 
Griggs 

Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2022/23 
 

Key 8 Dec 2021 
 
17 Jan 2022 
 

Yes Open 
 

Sharon Hammond, 
Head of Revenues 
and Benefits  
Sharon.hammond
@pspsl.co.uk 
 
 

Councillor Jonathan 
Noble 
 
 

P
age 50



Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

 

Quarter 4 Report - Finance 
 

Key 8 Dec 2021 
 

 Open 
 

John Hickson, 
Strategic Finance 
Manager  
John.Hickson@ps
psl.co.uk 
 

Councillor Jonathan 
Noble 

Quarter 2 Report - Performance, 
Risk and Finance 
 

Non Key 8 Dec 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Suzanne Rolfe, 
Insights & 
Transformation 
Manager  
suzanne.rolfe@bo
ston.gov.uk, Sam 
Knowles, Assistant 
Director - Finance 
(Deputy S151 
Officer)  
SKnowles@sholla
nd.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Jonathan 
Noble, Councillor Paul 
Skinner 

Annual Review Of The Corporate 
Strategy - To consider whether 
there are any changes required to 
the priorities in the Corporate 
Strategy 
 

Key 8 Dec 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Suzanne Rolfe, 
Insights & 
Transformation 
Manager  
suzanne.rolfe@bo
ston.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Nigel Welton 

Town Deal / PE21 Project 
 

Key 8 Dec 2021 
 
16 Dec 2021 
 

Yes Open 
 

Michelle Sacks, 
Deputy Chief 
Executive (Place) 
Tel: 01205 314292 
michelle.sacks@b
oston.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 
 
 

P
age 51



Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

 

Carbon Reduction Plan - To adopt 
the new Carbon Reduction Plan as 
commissioned from the Carbon 
Trust. 
 

Key 19 Jan 2022 
 

 Open 
 

Sarah Baker, 
Climate Change 
and Environment 
Manager  
sarah.baker@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Carbon Reduction Action Plan - To 
agree the Action Plan for 
implementing the previously 
approved Carbon Reduction Plan. 
 

Non Key 30 Mar 2022 
 

 Open 
 

Sarah Baker, 
Climate Change 
and Environment 
Manager  
sarah.baker@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Lincolnshire Discretionary Housing 
Assistance Policy - The provision 
of discretionary housing grants for 
a range of purposes that supports 
the national Better Care Agenda 
and reduces hospital admissions. 
 

Key 23 Feb 2022 
 

 Open 
 

Stuart Horton, 
Principal Housing 
Strategy Officer  
stuart.horton@bost
on.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Martin 
Griggs 

Adoption of Climate Change 
Strategy - Members asked for 
recommendation to Council that 
the final Climate Change Strategy 
be adopted after being informed by 
a period of consultation in late 
2021. 
 

Non Key 23 Feb 2022 
 
28 Feb 2022 
 

Yes Open 
 

Sarah Baker, 
Climate Change 
and Environment 
Manager  
sarah.baker@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 
 
 

Single-Use Waste Policy 
 

Key 30 Mar 2022 
 
11 Apr 2022 
 

 Open 
 

Heather Prescott, 
Climate Change 
and Environment 
Officer  

Councillor Paul Skinner 
 
 

P
age 52



Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

 

heather.prescott@
boston.gov.uk 
 

Quarter 3 Report - Performance, 
Risk and Finance 
 

Non Key 30 Mar 2022 
 

 Open 
 

Sam Knowles, 
Assistant Director - 
Finance (Deputy 
S151 Officer)  
SKnowles@sholla
nd.gov.uk, 
Suzanne Rolfe, 
Insights & 
Transformation 
Manager  
suzanne.rolfe@bo
ston.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul 
Skinner, Councillor 
Jonathan Noble 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 JOINT BBC-ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE
	Appendix A - Scrutiny Report - Joint BBC-ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance
	Appendix B - Scoping Document - Strategic Alliance Scrutiny
	Appendix C - Questions for Witnesses
	Appendix D - Councillor Questionnaire Results
	Appendix E - Meeting Notes

	2 LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) PEER REVIEW - PROGRESS UPDATE
	Appendix A - LGA Peer Review - Update on Actions

	4 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY
	5 WORK PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Quarter 1 Performance Information
	Appendix B - Forward Plan - November 2021 DRAFT


